
Community Center, 351 North 100 East, Boulder, UT 84716 Phone: 435-335-7300

Boulder Town Council Regular Meeting
May 4, 2023 7:00 PM
Meeting Minutes

Town Council Members present- Mayor Judy Drain, Steve Johnson, Jim Catmul, Gladys 
LeFevre, Elizabeth Julian, Town Clerk Jessica LeFevre

Public Present-
In person- Cory Johnson, Randy Catmull, Susan Heaton, Blake Spalding, Nichole Shrives, 
Cassidy Goodwill, Jack Shrives, Pam Furches, Tanya Collins, Vicky Catmull, Shelly
Price-Gipson, Dan Pence, Ashley Coombs, Keith Watts, John Kelly, Cynthia Butcher, Rod 
Butcher, Barbra VanQuill, Larry VanQuill, Annette Brems, Robert O’Malley, Cookie Schaus, Tina 
Karlsson, Sam Stout, Jeff Sanders, Tamarix, Bree Russel, Jabe Beal, Josh Ellis, Mike Nelson

Via Zoom- Peg Smith, Kandice Johnson, Keith Fullmer, Jill Trombley, Constance Lynn, Tessa 
Barkan, Jen Castle, John and Martha Veranth, Matthew Cochran, Karen DeBonis, Jennifer 
Geerlings, Jill Trombley, Tessa Barkan, Michael Steadman, Lydia Joukowsky, Nina Brownell, 
Lyndon Friant, Katie Coleman, Troy Julian, Debra Oldham, Jon Ryan, Jennifer Bach, Nancy 
Tosta, Lexxi Johnson, Randy Ripplinger, Dave Mock, Britney Peterson, Nick Vincent, Peter 
Benson

Meeting was called to order at 7:01

The Pledge of Allegiance is spoken.

TC Conflict of Interest disclosure

Approve agenda-

Approve March & April 2023 Minutes-

*Audio starts with Mayor Drain stating three months of minutes will be approved in
June.*

Public Comments-

Mayor Drain opened the Public Comment.

Josh Ellis thanked Council for addressing the Agenda and commented on the tree complaint
and the pedestrian path and stated he thought it was ironic that the City botched a few thousand
dollar tree trimming project and now expected the public to trust them with a project that was 50
times bigger and he thought the City needed to take responsibility for what had just happened
before they kicked off the training wheels. He thought it was inappropriate that town funds were
used to fix the error from the tree trimming project. Mr. Ellis referenced Councilmember

1



Catmull’s statement from the previous meeting. He stated that the Council needed to be
accountable for their appointments and said it may seem like a personal attack, but he loved
Councilmember Catmull. Mr. Ellis continued and said the Council needed to let the public know
what was going to be different with a project that was 50 times the scale.

Karen DeBonis made an announcement on behalf of the Garfield County Ambulance Team and
stated she was the only licensed and practicing EMT in Boulder and because the population of
Boulder was so small the ambulance was being taken away for the time being. She stated
there would still be a local protocol which was if you called 911, Boulder and Escalante would be
paged and the Escalante squad would bring their ambulance, but she would most likely show up
on the scene first with a jump kit. When Escalante arrived with the ambulance, they would be
the transport to the hospital. Ms. DeBonis stated people should still call 911 for the quickest
response. Ms. DeBonis thought as a community it would be beneficial if it was determined the
town would want an EMS system local to Boulder. She believed that it would unfortunately take
an accident resulting in death for this to become a priority. She was happy to point people in the
right direction in order to receive the training necessary to become a licensed EMT. Mayor
Drain agreed this was important.

Matt Cochran stated over the five or six months he knew they had been trying to figure out
issues within the Council and he was glad because the public needed a foundation of trust, but
he still felt like this was broken. He felt it was the responsibility of the Town Council to come up
with some answers and actions to the complaints that had been coming up so that there was an
actual standard that the public could perceive because there was no standard. He thought it felt
confused and uncertain and that there were questionable activities, and he did not think that sort
of atmosphere needed to persist or become accepted as normal and they moved forward.

Blake Spalding echoed what Mr. Cochran said and she felt this was the source of a lot of
anxiety around choices that were being made in town and she asked why they couldn’t find a
way to pay the town staff more. She felt strongly about better pay for the firefighters, EMTs, and
town clerk and thought they should be making a working wage. She stated the town was
matching a $43,000 grant and it was confusing to her with why they would be parsimonious with
the people that were holding up the structures and the systems of the town. She also wondered
why they could not pay Councilmembers and the Mayor. Ms. Spalding wanted to see a
business commission formed that somehow addressed the needs of the business community.
She thought there was a broken trust around town water and was concerned about requiring a
second hookup for ADUs and trailers on a landowner’s property.

Tessa Barkan addressed the tree issue and the ethics surrounding it and stated she appreciated
the way Councilmember LeFevre had led the discussion on Tree City the previous month and
hoped things were handled like that in the future. She continued to say the goal is that the
public can clearly see that any given decision comes out of informed and practical
conversations with all voices being heard without blaming or pointing fingers and also comes
out of valid information that was posted for viewing ahead of time. She thought if this was done
consistently it would go a long way to gain any trust that had been lost and thought a bigger

2



step that Council could take was adopting the ethics ordinance that was presented by Lee the
previous month.

Cory Johnson used the park path as an example of something the City should not be taking on
right now because of the amount of issues piling up right now and it seemed they needed to
solve these other problems. He thought there were other issues that were more important than
the park path the town needed to get through so they could get back to things that were
important to the Town. Mr. Johnson stated there needed to be an understanding that there were
problems they needed to solve so they could move forward.

Nick Vincent echoed the sentiment of public trust that had been brought up and encouraged
Council to take the time to address this.

Jon Ryan also echoed the prior comments and stated there had been actions taken by the
Council that made it seem like they were not in the best interest of the public and he echoed Ms.
Spalding’s comments about paying town workers better.

Mayor Drain clarified that all of the funding for the pathway would be coming out of C road
funds.

Tina Karlson thought communication was key in getting things in the community done and
sometimes it took a lot of energy to make that happen. She stated the Planning Commission
was working on goals going forward and encouraged the Town Council to do the same.

Bob O’Malley stated he moved to Boulder in 1980 and he loved this town… *inaudible* 28:30.

Purchasing Policy review-

Clerk LeFevre stated the previous month the limit had been raised from $1,000 to $5,000 and
showed a flow chart published by the state on purchasing policy and pointed out that any cost
under $5,000, the Town could obtain without achieving bids.

It was asked if this purchasing policy could be implemented as a resolution. Mayor Drain stated
they would look into it.

B & C Road funds-

Mayor Drain stated the B&C Road Fund had been a journey and she believed they had a good
feel for road funds now. Clerk LeFevre stated she had done research to find out what the B&C
Road Fund was to be used for and it was difficult for her to get an answer from anyone at the
state level. She explained the different classes of roads and where the money could go and
where it came from. The money for this fund came mostly from gas tax.

Clerk LeFevre stated the Road B&C money had not been updated in Boulder since 2012 and so
she had asked Councilmember Catmull to map out all of the roads and had the map submitted
to UDOT, which was how the Town would get the appropriate money in this fund and allow them

3



to budget accordingly. Mayor Drain noted they had picked up two extra miles in this mapping.
She stated she had talked to Dave Dodd and on January 1, 2024, the town would get a
one-time payment of $19,000 to the B&C fund and then $2800 ongoing. Councilmember
LeFevre clarified that this money could only be spent on roads and transportation projects.

Zoning Administrator Updates-

Clerk LeFevre stated April had nothing to report.

Budget review-

Mayor Drain moved onto the budget review. She referenced the figures from 2023 taxes and
had Clerk LeFevre explain how the number 0 had been reached and how difficult it was to
receive an answer from anyone at the County or State level.

Mayor Drain discussed revenue. There was discussion about money that should have been
received from the County per their fire agreement. Mayor Drain stated she would check on that
and that it might have been input in a different location.

Mayor Drain referenced the Fund Balance Appropriated figure and stated she would like to build
in $50,000 from capital projects for the pickleball court and culverts by the cemetery. She stated
they had $146,000 in capital projects.

Mayor Drain discussed expenses. She stated they had taken the new raises they had given
and tried to incorporate them the best they could into the budget. Councilmember Julian asked
for clarification on the packet. Clerk LeFevre explained.

Mayor Drain discussed Planning Commission and expenditures. Councilmember Julian
suggested including training costs in this category, so the Planning Commission knew how
much money they had available for training programs and for the sake of transparency.

Mayor Drain stated there would be a Public Hearing about the budget the following month
before it was approved.

Tamarix and Bree tree trimming and removal discussion-

Mayor Drain stated she had been approached by Tamarisk and Bree who were interested in
doing the tree trimming and cutting. She stated they would need insurance and a bond and
invited them to present. Bree Russell stated they offered tree services and indicated that
Tamarisk was a certified arborist and they intended on applying for a business license with the
town and getting insurance. She commented that it seemed like there was tree drama and
thought it would be good to work with the town and its trees. Sam Stout Stated he had seen
these two in action and they had his vote. Someone suggested the town buy a woodchipper so
the town could sell mulch.

Update on Rocketship-

4



Councilmember Johnson stated if the Arts Council wanted to relocate the ship to the park, they
were okay with it. Mayor Drain asked who would be funding the move. Tina Karlson stated she
was working with the Arts Council to figure out how to raise the funds, but she needed the
approval of the town before she moved forward with any of the details. She said the Arts
Council had a meeting in June and she was told it would cost between $5,000 and $10,000
dollars. It was asked where it would go and what it would be mounted on. Councilmember
Johnson replied it was suggested to put it where the elk was. Councilmember Catmull asked if
it would be cheaper to build a new rocket for $10,000.

Councilmember Johnson made a motion to have the rocket moved to the location where the elk
was in the Town Park. Councilmember LeFevre seconded. All voted Aye. Motion passed
unanimously.

Addressing Tree Board complaint-

Mayor Drain moved onto the Tree Board complaint and recused herself along with
Councilmember Catmull.

Motion made to move to a closed meeting. Councilmember Julian seconded. All voted Aye.

Councilmember LeFevre stated Council acknowledged that mistakes were made by the Town
Council and they wanted to be accountable for the mistakes that had been made and they were
going to continually renew the ethics and try to educate themselves and be better.

Councilmember Julian stated in order for Council to function as an effective body they needed to
acknowledge when mistakes were made and to take them as an opportunity to learn and grow.
She thought they needed to make information public and available in enough time to take
comments from people and be an informed body and if they did not have all the information then
they should not move forward. She wanted to encourage both Council and the community to
move forward from this and learn and grow together in order to be better.

Councilmember Johnson commented that this was an ongoing process and each day they
needed to do a little bit better. He echoed the sentiments of Councilmembers LeFevre and
Julian.

Mayor Drain stated they were going to move forward as a Council seeing and learning.

Public Hearing for the Pedestrian Path-

Mayor Drain offered an overview of the footpath before she opened the Public Hearing and
asked Councilmember Catmull to present the specifics. Councilmember Catmull stated in
February he went to Salt Lake City to see if they could get grant money for this and was offered
a grant through the Joint Highway committee that would require the Town to pay 6.7% of the
grant. He described the intended location of the path.

5



Councilmember Catmull stated no existing parking would be lost except for two spots in front of
the Outpost.

Councilmember Julian moved to close the public meeting and open the public hearing.
Councilmember LeFevre seconded. All voted Aye. Motion passed unanimously.

Public Hearing was opened.

Rod Butcher stated his grandson was disabled and used a wheelchair and would love to be able
to get outside and he thought it was a good idea.

Tina Karlsson thanked Councilmember Catmull for bringing this grant to the attention of the
town and with the community support they could choose grants that fit the Town’s needs and
she felt this should be considered on a list of needs. She wondered if this was an appropriate
use of town funds and she did not think an 8 foot pathway would be easily maintained and
thought that public infrastructure needed public input and support and the first step of seeking a
grant should start at the public level and encouraged the town to solicit projects the town was
supportive of funding and look for grant money for those projects and would table this project
until that was done.

Shelly Price-Gibson stated she wanted people to understand how this would serve the personal
needs of her and her husband. Her husband had had a stroke and she had had both of her
knees replaced and an injured foot and she had looked forward to a pathway she could feel safe
on. They lived in Upper Boulder and walked on the road, but the gravel was hard for them. She
commented with the knowledge she had she would love for the Town to consider this pathway
but would not vote on it until Council had everyone’s input.

Ashley Coombs stated he was totally for this path and would also like to see a bike path on the
highway between Boulder and Escalante.

Randy Catmull gave a history of the current path and that the current path was built by the water
company over the water main. He thought if people were worried about additional maintenance
costs, then the parks committee should ask the town for money and they would send Cory out
to maintain it whether he liked it or not because he was a Town employee.

Cory Johnson stated he was not against this path, but it did not feel like the right fit, place, or
time for Boulder. He expressed concerns about maintaining the path because it would be
problematic in the winter to keep clear. He did not think this project fit the General Plan of
Boulder and there were a lot of other projects that had already been discussed in meetings. He
understood there was a short window to accept this grant but that was not the way that a project
like this should be approached and the effort going into this project would take away from other
priorities.

Jabe Beal Stated he was one of the residents that used the current park path weekly and he
thought a cement pathway would change the character of what the park looked like and asked
the Town to consider the alternatives and seek out all the options that were out there. He

6



suggested coloring the cement or considering a bike path. He stated he was not opposed to it,
but he encouraged the Town to consider all of their options.

Jeff Sanders felt there might be other options as well that they should consider before they
rushed too fast into this. He thought that in the plan there was a path from Hills and Hollows to
the museum and maybe they should look into that route. He suggested an asphalt path instead
of a concrete path because of the complications that came with concrete and he believed they
look into the scope of all of their options instead of throwing everything into this grant.

Keith Watts asked how the funds were specifically allocated for what was being proposed and if
they would be open to changing how the funds would be utilized. Councilmember Catmull
stated if they wanted to change the plan, they would have to go back to UDOT for a new grant.
Mr. Watts asked if they could go to UDOT with alternatives and ask for funding. Councilmember
Catmull replied the money they had received was from the joint highway committee and it had to
go towards putting in a trail or a road with ADA accessibility. Mr. Watts asked if a paved bike
trail that was ADA accessible would be something they would consider because that would
benefit the community and be an asset for public safety. Councilmember Catmull replied he
could ask. Mr. Watts stated his wife had written a letter and asked for letters that had been
submitted be read and considered in the public record. Mayor Drain replied the letters had been
read by Council and would be posted on the website as part of the public record. There was
discussion about the process for submitting written responses.

Peg Smith thanked Councilmember Catmull for going out and acquiring this grant and she
understood there was a short window but she had some concerns. She thought an 8-foot wide
impermeable surface seemed off for Boulder. She commented that in the past when they had
tried to get a trail UDOT would not touch anything without a lighting requirement and asked if
that was a requirement with this grant. Councilmember Catmull replied that lighting was not a
condition of this trail. She stated that there was no statutory requirement that letters had to be
received 24 hours in advance of a meeting and they could set their own rule on that.

Sam Stout stated he had originally done the path through the park and they had done it pretty
cheap because the county had given them free gravel but it was something that was hard to
maintain and concrete would be better. He commented there had been disabled veterans that
had stopped in town and wanted to be able to get around and he thought it was comical to
imagine them riding their wheelchairs down Highway 12 and thought they needed to respect the
disabled veterans.

Josh Ellis stated that the vision statement for the community in the General Plan listed the
primary objectives as 1. To preserve the ranching, small-scale agricultural, wilderness lifestyle in
keeping with the rural/frontier spirit of Boulder and 3. To promote self-reliance and resilience.
He said the vision of the community was somewhat incompatible with ADA necessities which
creates a tremendous amount of tension around this project that probably would require some
time to tease out because nothing in the General Plan stated they were striving to be more ADA
accessible. He commented that probably sounded heartless to some people but basically the
goal was to be nutbags in the wilderness which did not work well with a wheelchair. He

7



continued to say that any infrastructure had to match the General Plan which was why there
was tension and with it being incongruent with the General Plan it was difficult for Council
because it was their job to follow the General Plan. He was not trying to be crass but this was
not something to be rushed. Mr. Ellis stated it felt like this was a top-down decision when it
should be a bottom-up decision and it should go through the community process.

Shelly Price-Gibson asked if there was a time limit for this project. Councilmember Catmull
replied they had until the end of August to decide. Mayor Drain stated they were having a
Public Hearing this evening because it was important they got started. Ms. Price-Gibson asked
if this was preventing other projects. Mayor Drain replied no. Ms. Price-Gibson commented that
she and her husband had nowhere to go in the winter and they tried to be self-sufficient but it
was very difficult in Boulder for them. She said moving a wheelchair in gravel was hell and she
did not think 8-feet was too much out of line for wheelchair use and asked everyone to consider
what she was saying.

Sam Stout asked if anyone knew how wide the trail currently was. He stated it was 7 feet wide
and so the new trail would only be one foot wider.

Cory Johnson addressed Mr. Stout and Ms. Price-Gibson and stated he loved Tony and would
love for Tony to have a place to get outside and he acknowledged that the gravel trail was
impossible to plow in the winter which was why he didn’t but as soon as they cement it, they
were bound to clear it and maintain it which meant salt which was bad for the grass and the
cement itself. He understood the ADA aspect but this was a huge project and it was definitely
delaying other projects.

Blake Spalding and Nichole Shrives spoke together. Ms. Spalding stated they owned the
businesses on the corner and they were blindsided by this project and they were under the
impression that this had been resolved and the gravel path would remain in place. She
repeated her suggestion for a business committee and stated she had spoken with Mayor Drain
the day before who had told her there would be zero impact to the parking. Ms. Spalding asked
what the building process would be and would the noise impact be. She asked what the parking
would be like during the construction process. She stated she cared deeply for Tony as well but
was not sure Highway 12 was the place for this project and perhaps they should consider
paving the paths through the town park if they were going to pave anything. Ms. Spalding
asked if ATV’s were allowed on the path. Councilmember Catmull replied no, but motorized
wheelchairs were. Ms. Spalding asked how that would be enforced and if skateboards were
allowed. She asked if dogs and horses were allowed and they pooped on the path who would
pick up that poop because they did not even have dog poop bags in the park. It was hard for
her to believe that she and Ms. Shrives were not going to lose parking, at least for one whole
season. Mayor Drain stated she did not know how long construction would be and perhaps that
was something they should look into. Ms. Spalding stated there were so many unintended
consequences for decisions like this such as rain runoff. Councilmember Catmull stated the
runoff would go where it was intended to go instead of through the parking lots of the grill and
the lodge. Ms. Spalding stated if they could not afford to pay Cory minimum wage for the work
he does then it was not fair to ask him to do more and she paid her dishwashers more than

8



Cory made an hour because it was appropriate. She continued to say that one person being
able to do all the work associated with what would come with this was too much.

Ms. Shrives stated it would be nice to be communicated with about this and she was promised
this would not affect her parking but she was still concerned. She was concerned about the
maintenance of the path through the winter and moving forward she would feel more supported
if she was communicated with more because it felt like it was happening behind their back as
the businessowners that this would most impact.

Ms. Spalding asked what the liability was if someone injured themselves on the trail. She loved
the idea of a bike trail and improving the park and asked that they slowed down and really
examined the unintended consequences and whether or not it was keeping with the General
Plan and supporting the business community. She said the state had spent millions advertising
this area for tourists and they needed to be able to provide parking for the people that were
coming into Boulder.

Ms. Shrives echoed Mr. Johnson’s concerns about focusing on the issues the Town already had.

David Mock thought the Council did well to find money however it was to be spent because it
was silly to turn down free money. He stated they had time to work on this and in the future
there needed to be a better dialogue between the businesses and the Council because they
depend on businesses to support the tourists.

Submitted letters were read and will be posted on the Town website.

Motion made to leave the Public Hearing and go back to the Public Meeting. Councilmember
Catmull seconded. All voted Aye. Motion passed unanimously

Discussion and possible vote on the Pedestrian Path-

Councilmember Catmull referred to the General Plan and read some passages and stated
‘sidewalks’ were mentioned in the General Plan.

Mayor Drain opened this for discussion amongst Councilmembers.

Councilmember LeFevre asked if there were options for an alternative to this plan.
Councilmember Catmull replied he was going to ask.

Councilmember Julian asked if they had a letter from UDOT or the joint-highway committee
about the reward they were given. Councilmember Catmull replied they had it. Clerk LeFevre
commented they had just received it that day. Councilmember Julian thought it was important
that this was made available to members of Council and the public. She commented they had
passed a resolution in February and asked if this resolution needed to be rescinded or amended
because this had changed and she wanted to make sure they did this in the proper order.

9



Councilmember Johnson stated it had come up several times that they need to start a dialogue
to identify what was important to the community and he asked if they could come up with a
system for this. Mayor Drain directed him to the bottom of the agenda. Councilmember
Johnson commented he did not think they would ever get to the bottom of the agenda.

Councilmember Julian stated this needed to be an ongoing discussion item leading up to the
vote. She thought it was awesome that Councilmember Catmull went out and found this grant
but they needed to work it out and take in all of the public comment before they followed through
with it.

Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF) transfer of funds discussion and vote-

Mayor Drain stated this was a plan through the state that they had their landfill closing money
sitting in if they decided they had to close the landfill and this was a really good fund. She
thought with the way the economy was going it was a good idea to not put all of their eggs into
one basket and with this PTIF fund it was a lot less risk than putting their money into a bank.

Mayor Drain stated it would still be the same fund and they needed to decide if they wanted to
transfer their savings over to this account. Councilmember LeFevre asked if they could
withdraw money from the account whenever they needed to. Mayor Drain confirmed and said
they could get it whenever they wanted. Councilmember Julian asked if they could make a
recommendation to further look into the PTIF and at the next meeting be presented with the
results of their findings.

Councilmember Julian made a motion to transfer funds from Mountain America to the PTIF at
the discretion of the Mayor and the Clerk. Councilmember LeFevre seconded. All voted Aye.
Motion passed unanimously.

Pam Furches Tree Board information-

Mayor Drain stated she had gone down the Burr Trail road with an arborist and she had learned
a lot. Pam Furches, secretary for the Tree Committee, stated she had been asked to the
meeting tonight by Mayor Drain to talk about their resources as a Tree City and because
Boulder was designated as a Tree City they had resources at their disposal, including grants to
complete projects. She noted the Boulder forester had recommended to them to start dreaming
big because more money would be allocated to these programs and Boulder had potential for
opportunities.

Mayor Drain asked how Arbor Day went and what all they had gotten done that day. Ms.
Furches replied they had invited the arborist horticulturist from Capitol Reef National Park to
speak about different projects and one of them was that Capitol Reef had replanted their peach
orchard. They had also discussed planting Cottonwood Trees in the park and would have work
parties in the park to maintain the public space and learn how to properly care for the trees.

Councilmember LeFevre stated when she had agreed to be a Tree City her stipulation was that
it did not cost the town anything. Mayor Drain stated they would put it in the budget to track

10



deposits. Councilmember LeFevre asked if they had a separate account for the grants that they
received. Ms. Furches replied they did not and that was something they needed to work out
and they would like to set up a donation account.

Councilmember Johnson stated one of the things that needed to be ironed out was the
relationship between the tree committee and the parks committee. Ms. Furches replied she
appreciated that and they needed all of the contact information of the committee and would like
for them to attend each other's meetings.

There was discussion about the trees on the Peterson property.

Ms. Furches stated that Ryan Johnson had volunteered to come to town and do the entire street
tree assessment and create a management plan. She needed a map from the town so they
were on the same page about what trees needed to be assessed and they needed to be able to
talk to all of the private landowners and let them know what the town would require of them
before any cutting was done. Mayor Drain stated trees in the right-of-way had been maintained
for safety reasons.

Mr. Ellis commented on the definition of ‘trimming’.

Mayor Drain stated they were going to address the ordinance to make sure the verbiage was
right, but the bottom line was they had the arborist out there and the trees were marked and the
trees that were in the Town’s right-of-way were going to be addressed for the safety of the town.

Department Reports-

Councilmember LeFevre addressed Ms. Spalding’s comments about a business committee and
asked if Boulder was at all interested in having a Chamber of Commerce. She stated there
were good reasons to have it but she did not want to be in charge of it. It was agreed to look
into it. Councilmember LeFevre stated she received all of the tourism tax information that the
Town was unable to find and informed Clerk LeFevre she would assist her in finding the
information.

Councilmember Julian reported on the CUP process for the Guest Ranch and stated that the
Planning Commission was currently in the process of understanding the changes that the state
legislature had made regarding subdivisions which were mostly procedural process
requirements. The PC was also in the process of reviewing Boulder’s current subdivision
ordinance to improve clarity. She stated library hours remained the same, Wednesdays 11-1
and Saturdays 10-12. She reported on all of the events of the Arts Council.

Councilmember Johnson reported on the Parks Committee and said they had elected a Chair
and a Clerk and admitted some new members. He thought this had been a productive meeting
and thought they could move forward in the spirit of unity.

11



Councilmember Catmull reported they had gotten new chip seal on the road in front of the
school, town hall, and fire department, they were getting rid of stuff in the dump and there would
be fire department training on Saturday.

Mayor Drain reported on flooding and said if they needed sandbags or sand, they could have
some brought over. She stated Mark McIff had picked up more than he could handle and there
was a certain percentage that once they hit it, then you had to give up your law practice and
strictly be a judge and he had suggested they find someone new. Councilmember Catmull
suggested Justin Raymond from Cedar City who was also recommended by Mark McIff.
Councilmember Julian asked about putting this on the next agenda and come prepared to
discuss potential options.

Approval for April checks-

Councilmember Julian stated she had not seen this ahead of time and was not comfortable
approving this. She was given time to review them.

Councilmember Catmull made a motion to accept the checks. Councilmember Julian seconded.
Motion Passed

Final Public comments-

Peg commented she was planning to put out a notice for a replacement for her position as the
Planning Commission Clerk. Her intention was to leave at the end of the year and hoped to
have a trainee in June that she could train throughout the year before she left.

June Business-
-Town Park projects

+Extend Town Pavilion parking
+Resurface Pickleball court
+North Side of Town Hall

-Tree City Ordinance Review
-9/11 Day of service

Adjourn-

Motion made by Mayor Drain to adjourn. Councilmember Catmull seconded. All voted Aye.
Motion passed unanimously.

Meeting adjourned.

________________________________________ ___________________

Minutes prepared by Jessica LeFevre, Town Clerk Date

12

09/08/2021



13




